CARSON CITY REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY CITIZENSCOMMITTEE
Minutes of the January 9, 2002 M eeting
Page 1

A regular mesting of the Carson City Redevelopment Authority Citizens Committee was scheduled for 5:30 p.m. on
Wednesday, January 9, 2002 in the City Hal Capitol Conference Room, 201 North Carson Street, Carson City, Nevada.

PRESENT: Vice Chairperson Linda Johnson
Steve Browne
Art Hannafin
Fred Nietz
Morey Tresnit

STAFF: Rob Joiner, Economic Devel opment/Redevel opment Manager
Kathleen King, Recording Secretary

NOTE: Unlessindicated otherwise, each item was introduced by Vice Chairperson Johnson. A taperecording of
these proceedings isonfileinthe Clerk-Recorder’ s Officeand isavailable for review and inspection duringregular business
hours.

A. CALL TO ORDER, DETERMINATION OF QUORUM (1-0001) - Vice Chairperson Johnson cdled
the meeting to order at 5:35 p.m. Roll wascalled; aquorumwas present. Chairperson Williamson and Member McCarthy
were absent. Member Tresnit arrived at 5:38 p.m.

B. ACTION ON APPROVAL OF MINUTES- December 12,2001 (1-0010) - Member Hannafin moved
to gpprove the minutes. Member Nietz seconded the motion. Mation carried 4-0.

C. MODIFICATION OF AGENDA (1-0031) - None.

D. PUBLIC COMMENTS ON NON-AGENDIZED ITEM S(1-0037; 0801) - June Hartman, of Comma
Coffee, referred to the approval of her redevelopment incentive funding request gpproximeately one year ago. She advised
that the owner of the building subsequently refused to agree to the required lien. She further advised that she has secured
a private bond and will be resubmitting an application for incentive funding. Member Browne requested Mr. Joiner to
research the matter and determine if there isaway to reaffirm the previous decison.

E. PUBLIC HEARING:

E-1. DISCUSSIONANDACTIONREGARDING AREQUESTFROM MADALENA FARROW
(PROPERTY OWNER: BOAC, LTD. (FORMERLY BANK BUILDING, INC.), FOR
REDEVELOPMENT PROGRAM FUNDING FOR REHABILITATION OF HEATING, AIR
CONDITIONING AND VENTILATION EQUIPMENT AND SYSTEMS, ON PROPERTY LOCATED
AT 600 EAST WILLIAM STREET, APN 002-145-01, IN THE AMOUNT OF $14,925 AND NOT TO
EXCEED20PERCENTOF THETOTAL PROJECT COST (1-0045) - ViceChairpersonJohnsonand Member
Hannafin advised of conflictsof interest withregard to thismatter. Vice Chairperson Johnson passed the gavel to Member
Nietz, and she and Member Hannafin left the meeting room.

Mada ena Farrow, representing BOAC, Ltd., circulated photographs and plandrawings for the project. She advised that
the HVAC systemisamagjor problemwhichneedsto be addressed immediady. Sheintroduced Rick Adamsof Anderson
Heeting and Dde Kindal of Silver State Temperature Controls. Mr. Adams provided informationregarding eva uation of
the exising equipment and the need for upgrade. Mr. Kindal reviewed the purpose and elements of the project. He
responded to questions regarding the existing air handling units and needed upgrades to the controls. He described the
various temperature disparities throughout the building. He acknowledged that upgradesto the controls and a fair amount
of repair are the mgor elements of the project. Ms. Farrow commented on the inefficiency of the equipment and, in
response to a question, advised that the problem has existed for the last tenyears. Mr. Adams discussed the condition of
the existing equipment and controls.

Ms. Farrow responded to questions regarding the time table for the project depicted in the plan drawings. She advised
of the purpose for the timing of thisrequest in relation to the entire project, and acknowledged that Sierra Pacific Power
Company recommended the retrofit. At the request of Member Browne, Mr. Joiner reviewed the memo attached to the
deff report. Ms. Farrow discussed additional proposed projects for the property. Member Browne commended Ms.
Farrow on the plan drawings, and commented that redevelopment incentive funding is available for the purpose of
“produc[ing] visons” He indicated that he would fed more comfortable if the HVAC upgrades were part of the entire



CARSON CITY REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY CITIZENSCOMMITTEE
Minutes of the January 9, 2002 M eeting
Page 2

project, and expressed concern with regard to inveding in a stop gap measure. Mr. Joiner suggested considering the
resources of the gpplicants, their holdings, and track record. He referred to the 777 East William Street office building,
discussed the improvements to the interior, and advised that it is now fully occupied with better tenants.

Ms. Farrow advised that incorporating the HV AC system upgrades into the entire project would extend the project by
several months. She further advised that, without assistance on the HVAC system, the renovation project will haveto be
postponed. Member Browne suggested that Ms. Farrow could gpply for incentive funding for the larger project in the
future. Mr. Kindal commented on the recent trend in Reno of empty bank buildings, and Ms. Farrow expressed aconcern
over logng tenants if the HVAC system upgrades are not done.  She responded to questions regarding the number of
exiging tenants, the percentage of the building currently occupied, and the amount of turnover.

Acting Chairperson Nietz passed the gavel to Member Browne and moved to approve the small
amount of money which will allow these people to continue maintaining the building inits present
condition and hopefully improve the overall look of the building and, therefore, benefit the entire
community and redevelopment aswell per the motion recommended by staff. Motion died for lack
of a second. Acting Chairperson Browne returned the gavel to Member Nietz. Member Tresnit
moved to evaluate this project further and reagendize it for next month’s meeting. Acting
Chairperson Nietz seconded the motion. Member Tresnit noted that additiond Committee members may bein
attendance at the February meeting. Member Browne encouraged Ms. Farrow to return to the Committee when sheis
ready to implement the full project, and to request incentive funding at that time. In response to a question, Mr. Joiner
advised that the upgrades cannot be reimbursed prior to receiving approva from the Committee and the Redevel opment
Authority. Mr. Joiner acknowledged that the $14,925 figure is 20% of the total project cost. He further acknowledged
that a special medting of the Committee could be caled prior to the regularly scheduled February meeting. M ember
Tresnit withdrew his previous motion and moved to entertaina continuance of thisitem and call a
special meeting prior to the February meeting in order that more Committee members can be
present. Acting Chairperson Nietz seconded themotion. Motion carried 2-1. Vice Chairperson Johnson
and Member Hannafin returned to the meeting room. Member Nietz returned the gavel to Vice Chairperson Johnson.

E-2. DISCUSSIONANDACTIONREGARDING THEREPORT OFACTIVITIESFROM THE
DOWNTOWN MERCHANTSASSOCIATION (1-0672) - Doreen Mack distributed a letter from Linda Spivack
and Michadl Robbins, and read a statement into the record advising of her resignation as president of the Downtown
Merchants Association. Vice Chairperson Johnson thanked Ms. Mack, on behdf of the Committee, for her hard work
over the past few years, particularly for her participationand coordination with the Committee and her contributions to the
Committee’ s ddliberations, both in the strategic plan and in the ongoing work of the Committee. She commended Ms.
Mack on her dedication to the downtown area. Ms. Mack thanked the Committee for dl its assstance and for funding
specia eventsin the downtown area. She advised that the Downtown Merchants A ssociation checkbook will be avallable
to be picked up by Mr. Robbins onFriday. Member Tresnit advised of avery positive meeting held January 3, 2002, and
commented that the recent devel opments have been surprising. He commended Ms. Mack for her efforts, diligent work,
and commitment.

In response to a question, Linda Spivack advised that andection is scheduled and that new officers will be gppointed by
that process. Vice Charperson Johnson requested that the elected officers work with Mr. Joiner. She invited the
participation of the Downtown Merchants Association members, and expressed the hope that the Committee and the
Merchants Association can work together to create a postive and economicaly successful downtown. Mr. Joiner
requested that the Merchants A ssoci ation consider rescheduling their regular, monthly meetings to a date other thanthe first
Thursday of eachmonthinorder that he and Supervisor Williamsoncan attend. He explained the conflict with theregularly
scheduled Board of Supervisors meetings on the first and third Thursdays of each month. No formal action was taken.

E-3. DISCUSSIONANDACTIONONARECOMMENDATIONTOTHEREDEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY/BOARD OF SUPERVISORSON AN AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES
BETWEEN CARSON CITY REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY AND WESTERN MANAGEMENT
ASSOCIATES AT A COST NOT TO EXCEED $9,200 FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE
REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY STRATEGIC PLAN; AND E-4. DISCUSSION AND ACTION
REGARDING DOWNTOWN STRATEGIC PLAN TASK FORCE MEETINGS (1-0856) - Mr. Joiner
reviewed the Saff report and Mr. Mooney’ sproposal. Mr. Mooney provided an overview of the cost estimate. Mr. Joiner
acknowledged that the Committee can enter into a consulting contract without a RFP, and explained the gpplicable
provisons for doingso. Member Hannafin inquired asto Mr. Mooney’ sinvolvement in the Downtown Strategic Plan task
force meetings. Mr. Joiner advised that the hours listed in Mr. Mooney’ s proposdl fdl far short of the actud time he will



CARSON CITY REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY CITIZENSCOMMITTEE
Minutes of the January 9, 2002 M eeting
Page 3

be investing. He acknowledged that Mr. Mooney will be assisting the Committee with the Downtown Task Force.

Mr. Mooney distributed an outline for the January 29, 2002 Downtown Task Force medting, and explained that he has
recommended usng the project management approach for organizing the downtown task force. He advised that the
Redeve opment Authority Strategic Planwill move forward as planned. He recommended that Mr. Joiner serve asgenerd
manager for the downtown task force projects, and reviewed the outline. Mr. Joiner will aso serve as project manager
for the economic revitdization project, Mr. M ooney will serve as project manager for cultural heritage, Member Hannafin
for physicd environment, and Member Browne for people conveyance. Mr. Joiner advised that the task force meetings
will be considered public hearings and, as such, subject to the Nevada Open Meeting Law. Minuteswill be required for
each meeting as well as an officid record of agendamaterials. Discusson took place regarding the differencesin purview
between the Committee and the Downtown Task Force. Mr. Joiner acknowledged that Mr. Mooney’ s contract will help
fadlitate the Downtown Task Force aswel as the Committee’ s specified objectives. Member Hannafin suggested thet this
should be clarified in Mr. Mooney’s proposa. Inresponseto aquestion, Mr. Joiner advised that the Committee and Mr.
Mooney will be involved in three meetings a month, i.e., the regular Committee meeting and two task force meetings.

Mr. Mooney discussed the dements of project management as applied to the task force, including coordination and
communication. He advised that he would provide the Committee members with a project update each week. Mr. Joiner
advised that Steve Bilyeu has been added to the Downtown Task Force. Mr. Mooney discussed the socid and cultura
tasks outlined inthe Gantt chart, and advised that a determination will need to be made regarding whether the input of the
other downtown task force members fits with the vision of the strategic plan. He discussed the involvement of the UNR
College of Business Adminigration in the survey questionnaires, and advised that he will continue to work with them.
Discusson took place regarding the survey questions, random sampling of property owners, business owners, and
individuds and the differences between the Redevelopment Authority Strategic Plan and the Downtown Task Force
agenda. Mr. Joiner discussed the Board of Supervisors' reception of the Redevelopment Authority Strategic Plan, and
reviewed the responghilities of the economic revitalization project team.

Vice Chairperson Johnson provided background information on the discussion for the benefit of the ditizens present. Mr.
Mooney pointed out that the Redevel opment Authority Strategic Plan is based on aquality perspective not an economic
perspective. Member Browne suggested that the visions of the two plans should be gpproached differently, but that the
work should involve the same people in order that the same dements are contained in both plans. Mr. Joiner suggested
charging the economic revitdization team, which will be established within the Downtown Task Force, with dl the issues
that the overdl Economic Development Team islooking for. He discussed the accomplishments of the Redevel opment
Authority, induding demolishing certain buildings, true redevel opment, and economic revitaization. He commented that
people come to Carson City because of its cultura heritage, but it's difficult to get the power brokersto commit to and
reinforce that on a day-to-day basis. He indicated that the Economic Development Strategic Plan has to “move in that
direction.” Member Browne noted that the responsibility of the Redevel opment Authority Citizens Committeeisto ensure
that the Economic Deveopment Strategic Plan includes the vision of the Redevelopment Authority Strategic Plan. Mr.
Joiner indicated that the tenets of the Redevelopment Authority Strategic Planneed to be considered inlight of supporting
economic revitaization. He suggested reinforcing economicswithin the task forces and subordinating the guiding principles
and qudity aspects of the Redevel opment Authority Strategic Plan. Mr. Mooney advised that thisisthe reason he elevated
economic revitdization to a project status in the operations plan.

Extendve discussiontook place regarding the agendafor the Downtown Task Force medtings and the differencesbetween
the gtrategic planand the operational plan. Member Hannafin suggested that after afew medtings withthe task force, many
of the questions will be answered. M ember Browne moved that the Redevelopment Authority Citizens
Committee recommend to the Redevelopment Authority/ Board of Supervisors acceptance of the
agreement for consulting services between Carson City Redevelopment Authority and Western
Management Associatesat acost not to exceed $9,200 for theimplementation of the Redevel opment
AuthorityStrategicPlan. MembersTresnit and Hannafin seconded the motion. Motion carried 5-0.
Member Browne commented that the Downtown Task Force will be an opportunity for the Committee to apply the
elements of the Redevelopment Authority Strategic Plan.

E-5. DISCUSSIONANDACTIONREGARDING REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY SPECIAL
EVENTS APPLICATION PROCESS (1-1835) - Vice Chairperson Johnson provided Mr. Joiner with suggested
revisons to the gpplication. Mr. Joiner responded to questions regarding available funding and publicizing the gpplication
process. Member Nietz indicated that heand Mrs. Nietz will bereviewing the gpplication and providing suggested revisons
aswdl. Mr. Joiner acknowledged that funding has aready been budgeted for events which take place prior to June 30,
2002. Discussion took place regarding funding for events and, in response to a question, Mr. Joiner advised that the



CARSON CITY REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY CITIZENSCOMMITTEE
Minutes of the January 9, 2002 M eeting
Page 4

gpplication can be revised and made available within the next week. Consensus of the Committee was to review the
gpplications at the Marchmesting. Discussion took place regarding the possihility of reserving fundsfor eventswhichmay
be presented after the March deadline, and consensus of the Committeewasto set a certain deedline for gpplications. Mr.
Joiner acknowledged that the Marchagenda will be kept mainly to the gpplication process. No formal action was taken.

E-6. DISCUSSIONANDACTIONONPROPOSED CAPITALIMPROVEMENTSPROJECTS
INCLUDING INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS ON CURRY STREET, DECORATIVE/SAFETY
FENCING ON SOUTH CARSON STREET, STREET LIGHT IMPROVEMENTS IN PUBLIC
PARKING LOTS, AND INTERSECTION AND HANDICAPPED ACCESSIBLE SIDEWALK
IMPROVEMENTSAT WEST PROCTOR AND NORTH PLAZA STREETS (1-2075) - Mr. Joiner reviewed
the staff report and referred to the letter fromDon Bernard included inthe agendamaterids. Consensusof the Committee
was to request Mr. Joiner to invite Mr. Bernard to attend a Committee mesting to discuss redevel opment of his property.
No forma action was taken.

E-7. DISCUSSIONANDACTIONREGARDING REDEVELOPMENTAUTHORITY BUDGET
EXPENDITURES (1-2215) - Mr. Joiner reviewed the budget preparationworksheetsincluded intheagendameterias.
In response to a question, he discussed the project scheduled for the southwest corner of Proctor and Plaza Streets.
Discussion took place regarding additional intersection improvement projects.

F. INTERNAL COMMUNICATIONSAND ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS (1-2361) - None.
F-1. FUTURE AGENDA ITEM S(1-2365) - Previously covered.

G. ACTION ON ADJOURNMENT (1-2366) - Member Browne moved to adjourn the meseting at 7:30 p.m.
Member Nietz seconded the motion. Motion carried 5-0.

The Minutes of the January 9, 2002 Carson City Redevelopment Authority Citizens Committee meeting are so gpproved
this day of February, 2002.

ROBIN L. WILLIAMSON, Chairperson



